1950

State of Utah in the interest of Lynn Lueorn Christensen : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

STATE OF UTAH, In the Interest

08

**LYNN LUEORN CHRISTENSEN,
Alleged Delinquent Child.**

APPELLANT'S BRIEF

• • STATEMENT OF FACTS. • •

Trans. 12, Plaintiff's Exhibit A.,
H. H. Ramsey, M. D., Superintendent of
UTAH STATE TRAINING SCHOOL, speaking of
the defendant says: (Exhibits 12 and 13--
not sworn to, no opportunity for cross
examination.)

"His physical examination is a healthy youth, apparently, there being no physical deformities, defects or illness at the time of the examination. The only probable defect which I have found was with reference to his vision which apparently has been corrected by glasses."

Dr. Ramsey further says in the same

"According to our findings, this boy is sufficiently retarded mentally that he would be eligible for commitment to this institution and may profit by coming here and is possibly a case for sterilization."

Plaintiff's Exhibit B, (Trans. 13),

Leland E. Anderson, Superintendent of South Sanpete Schools, says:

"Mr. Lynn Christensen of Ephraim when in the Fifth Grade, had an I. Q. (Intelligent Quotient) of 30.*** His general academic work places him now as a Fourth Grade student."

These Exhibits 12 and 13, were objected to and objection overruled. (Trans. 116)

(Trans. 37) MR. BARTHOLOMEW, a teacher, says of the defendant, Lynn Christensen:

"His work as an eighth grade student has been very difficult for him. He does have some ability when working in the shop."

(Trans. 38) "He did pretty well in our shop this year." "He has a lot of difficulty trying to read; his reading is very difficult for him."

(Trans. 42) Richard Wright, was called as a witness. He was not sworn. None of the

young witnesses were sworn. (Trans. 100 Q. V.)

(Trans. 42 - 43) Probation Officer Kempf says the tire was out, and the seat was out. He says Lynn Christensen cut it. It was the day that he took it and rode around the school grounds. Time, noon, Recess. (Trans. 44)

(Trans. 45) The seat and the back tire. I waited until after school to see what had been done.

(Trans. 48) Michael Lund, not sworn, age 10: "Well, I didn't see him, but Richard, he did." (Trans. 49)

(Trans. 50) I saw Lynn take the bicycle at noon.

(Trans. 52) Beverly Stewart called, not sworn.

P. O. Kempf: Did you ever have your bicycle stolen?

Beverly: No. (Trans. 52)

(Trans. 53) The seat got out and the tire got out. I saw Lynn on the bicycle seat and he wouldn't give it back to me. I saw him take it. I said: "Lynn, you better give it back to me", and he gave it back after awhile.

(Trans. 54) I saw him cut the seat, but that was all. I know it was Lynn. . . . He gave me a new tire and my dad put it on the bike.

(Trans. 55) Only out a little.

(Trans. 56) Don't know when it was cut. He cut the inner-tube too. I don't know why he cut it.

(Trans. 57) It wasn't cut at noon because I took it home with me.

(Trans. 59) We dented the fender ourselves. My brother when he first learned dented it.

(Trans. 60) He said that the only time he knew about it was when I came over and told him, but he said he didn't do it.

(Trans. 61) GWEN GOBLE, was called, not sworn.

(Trans. 62) Maybe once or twice.

MR. CHRISTENSEN: When you were a boy, you did that too.

(Trans. 63) When Lynn was out on the lawn with you, did he say anything nasty to you?

GWEN: I think, but I don't know.

(Trans. 64) THE COURT: Now, did he say anything nasty?

GWEN: I don't know. I think he said something nasty. I don't know. I can't remember.

MR. LARSON. (Trans. 65) She has been coerced and urged to testify, all of which is improper.

THE COURT (Trans. 66) Are you afraid of Lynn?

A. Yes.

THE COURT: Q May?

OWEN: Because he came out with a .30-.30 gun and threatened to shoot one of the kids.

(Trans. 66) Diane Madsen called, 12 years of age:

THE COURT. Q. Has he ever kissed you? (Trans. 67)

Diane: Yes. He just kisses me and runs away.

(Trans. 68) Did he ever throw you down?

DIANE: One time he chased me and I fell and sprained my ankle, and he grabbed me and kissed me and then ran.

(Trans. 69) Esie Gelleagos, not sworn, 8 years of age:

(Trans. 70) He didn't do nothing.

Q. Are you afraid of Lynn?

A No, I'm not.

(Trans. 70) SHANNON BJERREGAARD.

Q You know Lynn Christensen?

(Trans. 71) A. Yes.

Q Has he ever grabbed hold of you?

A. No.

Kempf: Have you ever been in the Variety Store in Ephraim when Lynn was there:

Shannon: Yes.

Kempf: Did he ever try to grab you in the store:

Shannon: He didn't exactly push me down. He didn't grab hold of me. He took hold of my arm. He just took hold of my arm, that's all that happened.

(Trans. 77) Just fell down, that's all. He just took hold of my arm and I kind of tripped. He didn't do nothing. He just said he was sorry.

(Trans. 71-72) CROSS EXAMINATION BY Mr. Larson:

Q Did Lynn ever mistreat you in any way?

Shannon: No. He's been perfectly nice to me.

Q How long have you known Lynn?

A All my life. I am in the fifth grade. I will soon be ten.

(Trans. 72) GWEN GOBLE, re-called as a witness. (This was after thy, the Court, had her out and talked to her.)

THE COURT. Did Lynn ever say anything nasty to you?

GWEN: Yes.

(Trans. 73) Mr. Larson: Objection. I want the record to show it, I insist upon these children being given the right of testifying without being coerced or lead or driven, much less taken out and given a private talking to and then be brought into this court to testify and then suggest that the court do the testifying. Now, I object to all of that.

THE COURT. Objection overruled.

(Trans. 74) GWEN: Lynn told me and Diane that he had fucked Marie Dodge.

COURT: Now, he said that to you and Diane, and he said he had done that to Marie Dodge?

GWEN: Diane, Rue, and Charles Nielson, and Lynn.

MR. LARSON: Were all these children where they could hear him say that?

GWEN: Yes, they were right by him. We were on our lot and they were just across the fence in Nielson's lot.

(Trans. 75) Diane Madsen was there with us.

MR. LARSON: I think now, under the circumstances, we ought to have the opportunity to bring these other children in and hear their story.

THE COURT: Very well, if you wish. Tomorrow morning. If we can get in touch with them tonight, we can hear

then tomorrow morning.

Kempf: Diane Madsen is still out here, I believe.

MR. LARSON: She could testify now then, couldn't she?

THE COURT. Yes.

LARSON: That's all.

(Trans. 75) DIANE MADSEN re-called.

(Trans. 76) Court: Now do you remember a time when you were all together there?

Diane: Yes, I think I can. This

COURT: Now, think very carefully.

Diane: I don't remember of anything like that.

(Trans. 77) Diane: Well, I don't remember of anything he said or anything like that.

(Trans. 78) WAYNE GRASER called, placed under oath.

(Trans. 79) I was going in and out quite a bit for stuff anyway, and as I came around the corner of the building I saw Lynn and this little girl. Now, they have kind of a railing around there and this little girl was, I guess, had been playing on that. I saw that Lynn had his hand down in her pants. When he saw me, why, of course, he ran and left and went around the other side of the building, and that's the one incident.

The other one was last fall. I don't know just when it was, exactly.
(Trans. 79) He was masturbating. That's the second incident.

(Trans. 80) Graser: Oh, I guess it isn't over fifteen or twenty feet. Maybe twenty-five feet, the length of the room.

(Trans. 80) Gross Examination.

MR. LARSON: Who is this girl you're talking about?

Graser: I don't know her. I actually didn't look at her in the face or anything. I heard him ask if she had a brother. She didn't say anything that I heard.

(Trans. 81) I didn't speak to her at all.

(Trans. 82) SAMMY GALLEGOS called, not sworn, age 14. Mexican boy.

Kempf: (Trans. 83) That evening when Graser saw it too?

Sammy: Well, I saw him playing with that little girl.

Kempf: Where did he have his hand?

Sammy: He had his hand on her pussy.

Kempf: Could you see it? You mean on her privates?

Sammy: Yes. I couldn't see exactly where he had it, but he had it under her dress.

Kempf: Could you see whether she had any pants on or not?

Sammy: No, I couldn't. (Trans. 83)

(Trans. 84) Sammy: He just hollered at him.

Court. His hand under the girl's pants-- in the girl's pants?

Sammy: I didn't see it in her pants, but under her dress. I couldn't see his hand.

(Trans. 85) I was playing with him at that time.

MR. LARSON: (Trans. 85) Cross Examination.

(Trans. 86) I couldn't tell whether Lynn had his hand on her private parts or was it just under her dress. I couldn't tell.

MR. LARSON: The girl never said anything or made any complaints that you know of?

Sammy: No.

(Trans. 88) I can't remember her name.

(Trans. 89) Kempf: Have you ever seen Lynn play with himself?

Sammy: Yes.

Kempf: You have? What did he do?

Sammy: He played with his pussy (Trans. 89)

(Trans. 90) KENT JOHNSON called as a witness, not sworn. Age 14.

(Trans. 91) Kempf: Did you ever see Lynn play with himself, with his privates?

Kent: Yes. I believe Lynn Reed was there.

Kempf: Are you sure whether he was there or not?

Kent: No. I'm not positive.

(Trans. 92) LELAND ANDERSON, called placed under oath.

(Trans. 93) Anderson: Superintendent of Schools, South Sanpete School District. I keep in touch with the students. I know Lynn. I know of nothing that the boy has ever done. It hasn't been called to my attention.

MR. LARSON: Has Lynn's improper conduct been called to your attention?

Anderson: All I know is his record. In fact, I am the one who gives the I. Q. tests to the District, and also give progressive activity tests. I know the record very well.

(Trans. 94) He, Lynn, is quite slow. The principal comes to us if they have a boy who is incorrigible.

(Trans. 95) LYNN LUEORN CHRISTENSEN was called as a witness.

MR. LARSON: Did you on May 10, 1950, and on several other occasions, steal

a bicycle belonging to Beth Stewart of Ephraim?

A No. I never. I have nothing to do with that bicycle. I never took it.

Q Not even once?

Lynn: I never took it.

Mr. Larson: Do you know what steal means?

Lynn: Yes. It means you take something from someone without their permission and don't bring it back (Trans. 95)

Larson: Did you ever take the bicycle?

Lynn: No, I've had my own bike. I've had one for six or seven years or maybe three years.

Larson: Did you ever damage the tires on a bicycle of Beth Stewart of Ephraim?

Lynn: No. I never had nothing to do with that bicycle. I was playing on the school grounds when she came along and told me that the bike tire was out. Beverly Stewart told me. It was right after school. She told me I had out it.

(Trans. 96) Larson: You deny it entirely?

Lynn: Yes. Then Dad bought our car and I ride with him.

Larson: Have you ever entered the class rooms at Snow Junior High School since May 10th on improper occasions?

Lynn: No. I've never entered them.

Larson: (Trans. 96) There hasn't been a word of evidence to show you have.

Q Have you on different occasions during the past few weeks, entered the girl's dressing room at the Snow College?

Lynn: No. (Trans. 96)

Larson: Have you made indecent advances toward girls of the first, second, and third grades, of Elementary Schools or any other schools?

Lynn: No.

Larson: (Trans. 96) Now, there were several things here that were proved that there was no foundation for in the complaint and which I move be stricken out because they're not involved in the (Trans. 97) charge, and until a man is charged, even a child cannot be lawfully convicted. (Trans. 97) THE COURT. The motion is denied because of the Statutes of Utah, Section 14-7-25, state that the court may conduct a hearing informally and may use any form or procedure which it feels best suited to ascertain the facts and make a disposition in the best interest of the child. (Trans. 97)

Larson: If, for instance, this is a charge of larceny--

The Court: If it is a charge of larceny, the Juvenile Court has authority and jurisdiction to go into the matter and handle it.

Court. In Utah Statutes, 14-7-4 (2), it states: "in any case where a juvenile fourteen years of age or older is charged with an offense which, if committed by an adult would be a felony, the Juvenile Court shall have concurrent jurisdiction with the District Court. Trans. 98.

Re. cross examination by Probation Officer Kempf.

Court: Mr. Larson, so that you may have a clear picture of this boy's situation, I would like to give you some additional information. Last February the 21st, Lynn was brought before the Juvenile Court, on other reports, that he had entered the Snow College Dressing rooms where he had searched through clothing and taken some money, etc.

(Trans. 98) Mr. Kempf and Mr. Christensen took Lynn to the State Training School, but the doctor was not there at that time. They returned and later Mr. Christensen took Lynn to American Fork at which time the examination was given.

(Trans. 99) I have here the report of Dr. Ramsay, who is the Superintendent of the School. (Reads Ramsay's letter) (Exhibit A--Trans. 12)

Larson: You had in mind making an order to the effect that he should go to the State Reform School?

Court: That was the previous order that he was committed to the Industrial School at Ogden, but that was suspended to give us an opportunity to further study his actions.

(Trans. 99) Larson: Now, you think this Training School would be a more fitting place?

Court: I haven't made any decision as yet. But of course, the Juvenile Court cannot make a commitment to the Training School; that would require a petition in the District Court and they would make the commitment. However, the parents could make a voluntary commitment. (Trans. 99)

(Trans. 100) Larson: What is your disposition in regard to that matter, Mr. Christensen, about sending him to that school at American Fork?

Christensen: Oh, my god! Are you fellows crazy? I should say not. He's not that kind of a boy that has to go up among all them kids.

Larson: That's a different place than the Reform School entirely.

Christensen: Yes, I know it is. We went up there and seen it.

(Trans. 100) Court: We are not ready to make a decision at this time. Mr. Larson, do you have any witnesses you would like to call?

Larson: I would like to call that girl, Marie Dodge.

(Trans. 100) Examination of MARIE DODGE after she was sworn.

Larson: Isn't the court swearing these young witnesses?

(Trans. 100) Court: Because of the young age, the court feels they do not appreciate the meaning of an oath, but are of an age where they will state facts as they know them. For this reason the other witnesses were not sworn. If you wish your witness sworn the court will do so.

Larson: Marie, you know the meaning of an oath, don't you? That if you tell a lie under oath, you can be punished for it and sent to the penitentiary and things like that? You're willing to be sworn aren't you?

Marie: Yes. (Witness placed under oath)
(Trans. 100)

Larson: Has Kempf ever talked to you about this case?

Marie: Yes. About three weeks ago. He asked me if Lynn Christensen had ever kissed me and I said no. Then he told me to say yes. Lynn has never kissed me.

Larson: (Trans. 102) Is this the girl here that that little Goble girl said he'd fucked her? Have you ever had sexual relationship with Lynn Christensen?

A What?

Mr. Larson: Well, has he ever fucked you?

Marie: No. (Trans. 102)

Larson: Well, you know what that means, don't you?

Marie: Yes. (Trans. 102)

Larsen: Are you sick much of the time?

Marie: Yes. (Trans. 102)

(Trans. 103) Marie: I've been -- last summer I was in bed for four months.

Larsen: Isn't that the time that the Goble girl said you had relations with this girl last summer?

Lynn: Yes. (Trans. 103)

Marie: From the 20th day of June until September.

Larsen: And were you ever out during those months?

Marie: No.

Larsen: Do you know what was the matter of you?

Marie: I had hemorrhages. (Trans. 103)

(Trans. 104) Marie: Dr. McQuarry was my physician.

The Court cross examines. (Trans. 104)

Court: Did he say why you had to say that

Marie: He said "I'll bring you over to Manti to the court." (Trans. 104)

(Trans. 105) Court: But are you sure now that he came out and said to you "you've got to say yes, that he did kiss you?"

Marie: Yes.

Court: Did he say it in so many words, that "You've got to say yes?"

Marie: Yes. (Trans. 105) Mama was there.

Court. Were you right down on your back from June 20th until September the 5th?

Marie: Yes.

(Trans. 106) Marie: Yes. I got out of bed a few times. The doctor came every other day.

Court: Did Lynn ever come to visit you?

Marie: Yes. A few times. With him mother and dad.

Court: Did he ever come alone?

Marie: No. (Trans. 106)

Court: (Trans. 107) Now, you say positively then that Mr. Kempf, after you told him Lynn hadn't kissed you, you say positively, that Mr. Kempf said "You've got to say yes, or I'll take you to Court"?

Marie: Yes. (Trans. 107)

Kempf: (Trans. 108) Now, after I talked to you, you assured me that there had never been anything happen between you and Lynn. About two weeks later I brought you up a subpoena, didn't I?

Marie: Yes.

(Trans. 109) MRS. MYRTLE DODGE BJERREGAARD, mother of Marie. called as a witness.

Larson: He said, " You've got to say yes"

Mrs. Dodge Bjerregaard: He said, "If you don't say yes, why", he says, "don't lie." That's the way he told her, as near as I can remember.

Trans. 110) Larson: You say Mr. Kempf, said to say, "Yes you did or we'll take you over to the Manti Court"?

Mrs. Dodge: That's the way we understood it. (Trans. 110)

(Trans. 111) Kempf: I think she's cleared the point up there.

Court: I believe that's all. (Trans. 111)

(Trans. 111) Direct Examination for the child by Mr. Larson.

RUE NIELSON was called as a witness (Trans. 111)

Larson: And do you remember of hearing a conversation between Lynn here and yourself and some girls, there was a Goble girl there?

Court: Two girls.

Larson: You don't remember anything about it?

Rue: Not over there. (Trans. 111)

Larson: (Trans. 112) I've never heard such a persistent examination on the part of the court to try to make a girl say something that she was disposed not to say.

Court. She said she could have been,

she went in the house to get a drink.

She went in the house and it might have been said then.

Larson: The Goble girl said that these children were there all together.

Court. Do you know the place we're talking about? This fence by Gwen Goble's house?

Rue: Yes. I know the fence. (Trans. 112)

Court: Do you remember that situation at all?

Rue: No. (Trans. 113)

Court: Do you remember being there, a group like that together at any time?

Rue: No.

Larson: Why do you fellows want to make people testify to things they don't remember? I can't understand that system. (Trans. 113)

Rue: My brother is younger.

Cross Examination by Probation Officer Kempf: (Trans. 114)

Kempf: And was there a day last summer when you, Charles and Lynn were together?

Rue: Yes.

Kempf: Out by your granary?

Rue: Yes. The granary is about twice

as far as this room from the fence.

(Trans. 114)

Kempf: When you were out there by the granary, what did Lynn say to you?

Rue: He said he fucked Marie. (Trans. 114)

Kempf: Who did he tell?

Rue: Charles and Me. (Trans. 114)

Kempf: What were you talking about for him to tell you something like that?

Rue: I don't know.

Kempf: Does Lynn very often get mad at you kids? (Trans. 114)

Rue: Yes. He threw a bat at us and hit Dial, and then he ran home.

Kempf: Did he ever break up any property around your place?

Larson: I object to that. (Trans. 114)
This is not a cross examination. There is no charge against this boy for breaking any property around Rue's place and in the Juvenile Court, the same as any court, you must charge the child in the complaint with anything you're going to prove. (Trans. 114)

(Trans. 115) DIRECT EXAMINATION for the child by Mr. Larson:

CHARLES NIELSON was called as a witness.

Charles: My name is Charles Nielson.
I am ten.

Larson: Do you know a little girl, Miss Goble?

Charles: Yes.

Larson: Do you remember this conversatio

Charles: No.

Larson: Well, did you ever hear Lynn Christensen say that he had fucked Marie Dodge, when Diane Madsen, and your brother, and this Goble girl were present?

Charles: Not that I can remember.
Trans. 114.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY PROBATION OFFICER
KEMPF: (Trans. 115)

Charles: I don't know where it was, but he said it to me.

(Trans. 116) Kempf: That is all Charles. Your Honor, I have here two letters I would like to submit as evidence. The first letter is from the State Training School which was received a few days ago. I would like to submit that as an Exhibit. The second is signed by Leland Anderson, Superintendent of Schools. He has submitted a sworn statement concerning the academic qualifications and capability of Lynn Christensen. I would like to submit that as an Exhibit.

Larson: I object. That is not proper, it's irrelevant, and not within the issues involved in this particular case.
(Trans. 116)

Court. Objection overruled, (Trans. 116)
The letter from the Training School will be Exhibit A, and the other Exhibit B.
(Trans. 116)

Larson: May I see those Exhibits?

Court. Yes, sir. Anything further Mr. Larson?

Larson: That's all.

Court. That's all. Mr. Larson, is that all your witnesses?

Larson: Yes.

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