1950

# State of Utah in the interest of Lynn Lueorn Christensen : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

This section obviously refers to the proceedings which initially are instituted in order to bring a child within the jurisdiction of the Juvenile Court. In this case, however, Lynn Lueorn Christensen was on the 21st day of February, 1950, adjudged to be a delinquent child and committed to the Utah State Industrial School until he reached the age of 21 or was sooner discharged by due process of law. The execution of the order was suspended until May 15, 1950, at which time the actions of said child were to be reviewed to determine whether further treatment was needed (R. 15). The Report and Petition of Probation Officer for Rehearing of Case and Modification of Order alleges that the child violated the order of probation. In the Order for hearing dated 12th of May, 1950, and signed by the Court (R. 9) the court stated that “the child was placed on a suspended com-

mitment to the State Industrial School and placed on probation for further supervision and study.” While nothing in the record now before this court indicates what the exact terms of the probation were, it must be assumed from a reading of the report and petition (R. 8) that the actions of the child set forth in the petition were a violation of his probation. The statutory provisions of Title 14, Utah Code Annotated 1943, do not set forth in specific language what type of proceeding must be had once a child has been adjudged delinquent and placed on a suspended commitment or probation.

In the case of *Stoker v. Gowans* (1915), 45 Utah 556, 147 Pac. 911, this court upon appeal from the judgment of the district court denying a writ of habeas corpus discussed the powers and duties of the Juvenile Court and held:

“We thus have an act which practically confers parental powers and duties upon the Juvenile Court. How can another court thus be called on to review every act of the juvenile court which may in some way and by some parents or guardians be considered inimical to the delinquent? Moreover, how can a law be framed so as to define and provide for every act the court shall take or order that it shall or may make respecting the care, custody, control, or conduct of all delinquent children? To attempt this would be as impossible as it is impractical. It seems to us that by suspending

the supposed sentence the court did no more than if it had in the first instance committed Fern to the custody of the probation officer, and had required her to report to the court from time to time, and had thereafter, upon application of such officer, modified the original order or judgment by ordering her committed to the Industrial School. The only difference is that the court made the order of commitment upon the first hearing, and then conditionally suspended its operation. and, after the probation officer made application to the court in which he alleged that Fern had violated the conditions imposed by the court upon which sentence was suspended, then ordered that she be committed. *The proceeding may have been somewhat irregular, but, under the provisions of the law, it was not void*". (Italics added.)

After discussing other points, this court affirmed the order of the district court, denying the writ of habeas corpus. In this case, as in the Stoker case, the court made an order of commitment upon the first hearing and conditionally suspended its operation. Also it appears here, as in the Stoker case, that the child violated conditions imposed by the court on which sentence was suspended. It is therefore respectfully submitted that the action of the Juvenile Court in committing Lynn Lueorn Christensen to the Utah State Industrial School, while there may have been some irregularity, is not void.

No case has been found in which this court has discussed the question as to whether a juvenile once



committed to the Utah State Industrial School and having had his commitment stayed and being placed on probation is entitled to a hearing. The reasoning of Mr. Justice Wolfe in the concurring opinion in the case of *Christensen v. Harris* (1945), 109 Utah 1, 163 Pac. (2d) 314-318, discussing the question of revocation of a suspended sentence in the criminal case may readily be applied to the situation now before this court. There it was said:

“In probation as in parole the defendant is convicted and has only conditional liberty. When a law intended to benefit a convicted defendant is so construed as to require formal pleadings, right of counsel, formal hearing with all the judicial trimmings and right of appeal just to insure against the possible rare case of arbitrary action by a judge, it goes a long way to discourage a judge from granting probation and defeats the salutary purposes of the act. A judge may feel in a doubtful case that if he tries probation, the convicted defendant will be put in such strategic position as to virtually defeat needed revocation. I have expressed my willingness to go along with the Zolintakis case if it is construed only as requiring that before probation is revoked the probationer be given a hearing on the question of whether he has violated the conditions of his probation. I do not think he need be notified in writing as to the facts relied upon for revocation, nor that he is entitled to counsel, nor that the hearing be formal. A hearing implies a right to present relevant evidence. I think the right to examine



and cross-examine witnesses is largely in such type of case in the discretion of the judge who granted probation. The intent of the law was to give the judge a supervisory jurisdiction over the probation and if we are to adhere to the holding that the defendant is entitled to a hearing, we should hold that it is in the nature of an inquiry, the nature and extent of which is largely in the discretion of the judge. The judge could call in the probationer, question him on matters which were brought to the judge's notice by others. Whether the probationer should be confronted by those witnesses is within the choice of the judge. The inquiry need not extend beyond an informal hearing and certainly need not be expanded into a formal trial. It is not to be presumed that the judge will be arbitrary. It is to be presumed that he will act on a reasonable factual basis. The judge had absolute discretion to grant or refuse probation. If we hold that he has a limited discretion in revoking, I think we are going beyond what the statute intended but certainly with a right of appeal, the rights of the probationer which we have judicially given him are sufficiently protected without holding that he is entitled to all of the formality and procedure which due process may require in the case of a man charged but not convicted of a crime. It seems to me the appeal should be limited to determine only whether the trial judge was arbitrary in revoking the suspension. And if he accorded a hearing on reasonable notice and reasonable opportunity to the defendant to present his side of the story, the judge could not be said to have been arbitrary at least in regard to procedure."

As in the case of a criminal on probation, it would seem that the rights of a child who has been adjudged a delinquent, are amply protected if he is given a hearing in which he has the opportunity to present his witnesses and to be confronted by witnesses, with the right of cross-examining such witnesses with regard to the violation of his probation or the condition of a suspended commitment to the Industrial School.

In the petition (R. 8), Mr. Calvin M. Kempf stated that he (Christensen) did "on May 10, 1950, and on several other occasions, steal a bicycle belonging to Beth Stewart of Ephraim, Utah; that he did damage the tires and the seat of said bicycle; that he had the bicycle without permission of Beth Stewart and her family;" Even assuming that the child would be entitled to a formal hearing on a petition to modify an order of commitment, we submit that the petition sufficiently advises the child as to the charge made against him with regard to the bicycle to enable him to answer the same.

Section 14-7-25, Utah Code Annotated 1943, with regard to proceedings before the Juvenile Court provides:

" \* \* \* The court may conduct the hearing in an informal matter and may adopt any form of procedure in such cases which it deems

best suited to ascertain the facts relating to such case and to make a disposition in the best interests of such children and of the public \* \* \*."

In view of this provision, it is submitted that it matters not that the probation officer denominated the taking of the bicycle as "stealing a bicycle", and further conceding that what the child, in this case, did was "nothing more than riding of a bicycle around a school yard", such action on the part of the child would seem to be in violation of the Order of probation, particularly in view of his action in damaging the tires and the seat of the bicycle.

The court in its findings of fact stated (Tr. 16):

"Further testimony was given that a bicycle belonging to Beth Stewart had been taken on different occasions and the seat and tire cut and ruined by a knife. The evidence was conflicting, although it appeared to the court that the testimony did show that the bicycle was taken by Lynn Christensen and damaged by him. Also, there was no provocation for taking or damaging the bicycle. By the evidence, it was shown that although said child, Lynn Christensen, denied taking the bicycle or damaging the tire or seat, he and his father did replace the tire with a new one."

We submit that this finding is supported by the evidence even though such evidence was, as stated by the court, in conflict. See testimony of Richard Wright (Tr. 42-48); and testimony of Michael Lund (Tr. 50).

The finding of the court that the bicycle was taken by Lynn Christensen and damaged by him is further supported by the uncontroverted testimony of Beverly Stewart that he and his father did replace the tire with a new one (Tr. 54).

The petition further states (R. 8):

“That during the past few weeks on several occasions such child did unlawfully enter class rooms in the Jr. High School, even after being advised not to enter; said rooms were not school rooms in which said child had classes.”

The plaintiff states that

“The statement that the child did unlawfully enter class rooms is merely a conclusion and even the allegations of the petition are not supported by the testimony.” (Plaintiff’s brief, pp. 30-31).

The court found with regard to this matter:

“That he had told said child that he was not to enter said class rooms after 3:30 in the afternoon; and that it was necessary on two or three occasions to send him home for being in said class rooms in violation of his order.” (R. 15).

This finding, we submit, is supported by the testimony of Glenn Bartholomew:

“BARTHOLOMEW: Well, one of the contacts I’ve had with Lynn is the problem that I talked

over with his mother about him leaving school after 3:30.

“LARSON: He was there then?

“BARTHOLOMEW: I talked with Lynn about this personally, about his leaving the building at 3:30, and it was with the wishes of his parents that we have him come home at 3:30. That’s what we wanted him to do because we felt that would probably help clear up some of the difficulties with Lynn. We felt that considerable of his trouble has been caused because of his idle time and hanging around school with nothing to do. I have, a time or two, had to send him home from school at 3:30. \* \* \*”  
(Tr. 37).

This finding is further supported by the testimony of Wayne Graser where he testified as follows:

“P. O. KEMPF: What was your reaction when you caught him? The first time?

“GRASER: I asked him why he had not gone. He said he didn’t know. I don’t know just exactly what I said, but I told him that I wanted him to get dressed and get out of there is a big hurry, which he did. By the time I locked up or got ready to lock up, he had left.”  
(Tr. 79).

We submit to the court that the child’s action in having to be sent home several times at 3:30 and having to be sent out of the gymnasium whether “unlawful” or not, was in violation of the conditions of his parole.

Appellant complains that "there is no allegation here to the effect that the parents are unfit, incompetent, or that they have knowingly failed and neglected to provide for said child the proper maintenance, care, training and education required by both law and morals." (Plaintiff's Brief, p. 31). It is submitted that no such allegation is necessary even on original proceedings. The statute, Section 14-7-13, Utah Code Annotated 1943, does not require such an allegation; nor is it necessary that there be any allegation that a child has been tried on probation in the custody of his parents or that said parents have ever, either of them, been convicted of a felony as contended by appellant (Appellant's Brief, p. 31). Section 14-7-31, Utah Code Annotated 1943, provides:

"No child as defined in this chapter shall be taken from the custody of its parents or legal guardian without the consent of such parents or legal guardian, unless the court shall find from the evidence introduced in the case that such parent or legal guardian is incompetent, or has knowingly failed and neglected to provide for such child the proper maintenance, care, training and education contemplated and required by both law and morals, or unless a child, being a ward of the court, has been tried on probation in the custody of its parents or legal guardian and has failed to reform; or unless either parent, having full custody and control over a child, or the child's legal guardian, has been convicted of a felony; or unless the court shall find from all the circumstances

in the case that public welfare or the welfare of a child requires that his custody be taken from its parents or legal guardian.”

Admittedly the Juvenile Court must find from the evidence either that the parent has knowingly failed to provide the child with proper maintenance and care contemplated and required by both law and morals, or, shall find from all the circumstances in the case that the welfare of the child requires that its custody be taken from the parent. There is nothing in this record to indicate whether the Juvenile Court made such a finding in the original proceedings or not. However, it is submitted that inasmuch as no appeal was taken that it must be presumed that the former order of commitment was in all respects regular and that such a finding was made. The court did, however, conclude that “from the experience of said child while on probation, he is not able to get such help (specialized, supervised treatment) in his home or in the community; it is therefore to the best interests and welfare of said child that he be committed to the State Industrial School \* \* \* and that the parents of necessity be deprived of the care, custody and control of said child.” (Tr. 19)

All of plaintiff's argument with regard to the question as to whether the “complaint” states a cause of action assumes that a formal complaint in this type of hearing is necessary. Such, we submit, is not

the case. It is the contention of the respondent that the fundamental issue decided by the Juvenile Court was whether Lynn Lueorn Christensen had violated the terms of his probation and whether the suspended commitment committing said child to the Utah State Industrial School should be revoked. It is submitted that when considering any of the arguments of counsel for the appellant with regard to a cause of action that there is sufficient competent material evidence in the record to support the court's findings and conclusions that the child's probation should be terminated and the order of commitment issued. The testimony of the high school coach, Mr. Wayne Graser (Tr. 78-82) concerning the child's actions and his conduct with a little girl is sufficient, we submit, to warrant the revocation of the probation. The petition alleges as one of the reasons that the child had violated the order of probation was that he, Lynn Lueorn Christensen, "has also on different occasions made indecent advances toward girls in the first, second and third grade of the elementary school."

#### IV.

#### **Appellant's Points IV, V, VI and VII Were Not Argued in Appellant's Brief and Therefore They Are Deemed Waived.**

It is fundamental that an appellant who assigns errors must, as a general rule, argue such errors or otherwise they will be deemed waived. Plaintiff's points IV, V, VI and VII were stated apparently as errors.



However, no argument was made of such points either in the Statement of Points or in that section of plaintiff's brief denominated "Argument". In the case of *Felkner v. Smith* (1931), 77 Utah 410 296 Pac. 776, an assignment of error was made by the plaintiff but was not argued in the briefs. The court there held:

"That assignment of error is not argued in appellant's brief and, therefore, it is deemed waived."

In the case of *Sandall v. Sandall* (1920), 57 Utah 150, 193 Pac. 1093, the appellant assigned errors which were not referred to in appellant's brief. The court in discussing the question of such omissions held:

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